SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 23, 2009
1:37 p.m

1: 37: 07 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stedman called the Senate Finance Comm ttee neeting
to order at 1:37 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co-Chair
Senator Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice-Chair
Senator Johnny Ellis

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Joe Thomas

MEMBERS ABSENT

None
ALSO PRESENT

Christine Kl ein, Deputy Comm ssioner of Aviation, Departnent
of Transportation and Public Facilities.

SUMVARY

NAviation Industry Presentation by Christine Klein, Deputy
Conmi ssioner of Aviation, Departnment of Transportation and
Public Facilities.

1:38:11 PM AT EASE
1:38: 23 PM RECONVENED

CHRI STI NE KLEI'N, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER OF AVI ATI ON, DEPARTMENT
OF TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC FACILITIES briefed the
conmttee on the Aviation Industry wth the PowerPoint
presentation, “Alaska International Airports” (Copy on
File).

Overvi ew.
| . System Advant ages & Strengths

1. Al aska System G obal Advant age

2. Airport System Strengths
3. Econom c | npacts

Senat e Fi nance Committee 1 03/23/09 1:37 P. M



II. Traffic, Trends, Concerns
1. Gowh of Past 10 Years
2. Weakeni ng of 2008 Events
3. Al AS Responses
[1l. Future Qutl ook
1. AIAS Tie to G obal & National Mrkets
2. Responsi veness and Conpetitive
3. Cautious Stable Gowh

1: 39: 25 PM

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 3, “Alaska International Airport
Systent (Al AS):

e Established in 1961
e Airports of Anchorage International Airport (ANC) and
Fai rbanks international Airport (FAl)
o Shared Assets and Resources
o Capital and Bonding Capability

 Aviation Support across vast and renote distances
o Aircraft Alternate and Diversion Options for
weat her/ di sasters.

e Serving Al aska and Wrl d
o Part of the National Priority International
Airport system

1: 41: 55 PM

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 4, “Alaska’s dobal Advantage
Payl oad versus Range.” She explained the advantages of
Al aska’s location, wth both Fairbanks and Anchorage
approximately nine hours distance from all centers of the
industrialized world. Alaska’s location allows profitable
transport for air carriers traveling across the globe. She
cited an exanple of a freighter traveling from Hong Kong to
Chi cago, explaining that a stop in either Anchorage or
Fai rbanks earns double the revenue. A direct flight from
Hong Kong to Chicago nust carry nore fuel wthout the
payi ng conmodity.

1: 43: 04 PM

Senat e Fi nance Committee 2 03/23/09 1:37 P. M



Ms. Klein discussed Slide 5, “Al aska System Advant ages”:

Regul at ory:
* Progressive C earance
e International to International Cargo Transfers

* United States Department of Transportation awarded
Cargo Transfer Flexibility in 1996

» Expanded Cargo Transfer 2003

Location and Cost:
e Strategic Location for Trans-Pacific Asia Cargo
« Pay-l| oad versus Range
 Gowng Asia Market and Base of Chinese Freighters
* Close alternate airport
* No Slots or Curfews
« Parts exchange program

» Conpetitive airports: each with sanme low rates and
f ees

1:45: 04 PM

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 6, “AlAS Strengths”:

* One Revenue System

 Two Large International Airports
» Conpetitive Rates and Fees

» Diverse Revenue Sources

 Wde Mx of Air Carriers

* Air Cargo center for Asia

* Long-term Commi tment s

e System Capacity for Gowth

* Economc Engines for the State of Al aska and the Loca
Communi ti es

Ms. Klein nentioned the expansion potential in Alaska in
conparison to other urban areas. Anchorage nmaintains
traffic and revenue because of expansion potential.

1:47: 02 PM

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 7, “Strength: Diverse Business
Revenues” (Pie Chart). She discussed diversity of revenue
sources. Landing fees generate over 42 percent of revenue.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 3 03/23/09 1:37 P. M



The certificated maxi mum gross take-off weight determ nes
t he | andi ng fee.

Senat or Huggi ns requested a reciprocal approach to |anding
fees. He wondered if there were disparities in |anding fees
for different airports. M. Ken answered that each
international airport is different. The United States use
simlar landing fee structures, but international airports
outside of the United States have wdely different fee
structures.

Ms. Klein noted that nearly two thirds of revenue include
cargo and passenger sources. Fuel flowage is the second
| argest revenue source. The final revenue sources consi st
of concession fees, parking fees, federal i nspection
service, and | and rents.

1:49: 12 PM

Ms. Klein stated that the total budget is $112 million for
the system including operating and maintenance costs
ranging from $49 million to $70 million in the last 10
years. Currently, the FY09 budget is $71 mllion, which is
simlar to the FY0O6 budget.

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 8, “Cargo and Diversity of
Carriers”: She informed that Alaska has thirty-five
different air cargo carriers. She noted that 14 carriers
were from the United States while 16 are from other
countries. She informed that 35 percent of cargo carriers
serve China.

1: 50: 29 PM

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 9, “Overall Statew de Aviation
Economic Contribution to Alaska.” She noted that the Al aska
Aviation Systemis the largest systemin the United States
with nort airports than the Russian Federation. The
avi ation industry provides over 47 thousand jobs in Al aska,
and is the fifth largest provider of Alaska' s gross state
product equating approximately #3.5 billion of Al aska s $44
billion economny.

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 10, “Anchorage Specific Economc
| npact :

e One in eight jobs

Senat e Fi nance Committee 4 03/23/09 1:37 P. M



e about $562 nmillion direct annual payrol
* Another $288 million in annual comunity jobs payrol
e $2.36 billion total annual Anchorage | npact

Co-Chair Stednman questioned the accuracy of the estinmates
for payroll for annual community jobs. He asked if the
aviation industry used a multiplier including bands of
confort. Ms. Klein responded that an Institute of Social
and Econom ¢ Research (I SER) update provides necessary data
biyearly. The standard deviation or margin of error for
this particular report is unknown.

1:53: 25 PM

Senat or Huggins introduced the debate about ai rport
parking. He opined that a great demand for airport parking
exists, but he requested an expert opinion. M. Kl ein
answered that excess airport parking, although disconnected
fromthe termnals, exists

Senator O son clarified the location of the additional
parking as east of the Departnent of Transportation
facility near Anchorage International Airport.

1: 54: 41 PM

MVB. Klein addressed Slide 11, “Traffic, Tr ends, and
Concerns”:

Traffic, Trends, and Concerns

G owth Past 10 Years

Past Year 2008 Wakened
Traffic Downturn & Concerns
Al AS Responses

PN

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 12, “Traffic: Passenger G owh”
(Graph): She stated that growh has been steady. She
infornmed that |ast year showed 5 percent growh, while this
year shows 0.5 percent grow h.

Co- Chair Stednan asked about Slide 12 and the final portion
of 2008. He requested data through February 2009. Ms. Klein
replied that the requested information is included later in
her presentati on.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 5 03/23/09 1:37 P. M



Senator O son asked about the «classification of cargo
carriers used in Alaska's aviation industry. M. Klein
reported that traffic is measured using certified activity
reports for 121 cargo carriers.

1: 57: 46 PM

Co-Chair Stedman asked for a definition of a 135 carrier.
Ms. Klein answered that there are different categories of
cargo carriers. Those with greater than sixty seats are
termed “121 carriers,” while “135 carriers” contain fewer
than 60 seats.

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 13, “Fairbanks”: a Star in Wnter
I nternational Passenger Enplanenents.” She attributed the
increasing international enplanenment nunbers in Fairbanks
to winter tourismfrom Asi a.

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 14, “Traffic: Cargo G owth.” She
di scussed the neasurenents of aircraft and the effect on
revenue. She infornmed of the 4 to 6 percent annual grow h.
The bar graph illustrates the take-off weight wused to
measure revenue. The landing portion of the graph varies
from year to year due to holidays in other countries, down
mar kets, and fuel cost vari abl es.

1: 59: 54 PM

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 15, “International Cargo is big
busi ness”:

Air Cargo domnates airfield activity at Anchorage
International Airport and generates nost of the
aircraft | anding fees.

* Nearly 35 percent of International Cargo traffic
is from China

e 2000-15 | andi ngs per week.

 2006-198 | andi ngs per week.

e 2007- 260 | andi ngs per week.

e Total China-US air cargo nmarket in 2007 is equa
to 36.7 percent of all Asia North America air
car go.

2:01: 33 PM

Senat e Fi nance Committee 6 03/23/09 1:37 P. M



Ms. Klein discussed Slide 16, “International Cargo at
Anchorage.” She naned nine international «carriers that
account for over 55 percent of cargo revenue. These include
Cathay Pacific, China Airlines, Korean Airlines, Eva
Airways Corporation, Japan Airlines International, Asiana
Airlines, Singapore Airline Cargo, N ppon Cargo Airlines,
and Air China. She nentioned that Federal Express and
United Parcel Service are mmjor players in the Al askan
mar ket as they are Anchorage hubs.

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 17, “2007 ACI Cargo Traffic Stats
(Metric Tons).” She stated that Anchorage ranked nunber
three in 2007.

Senat or Huggi ns asked why Menphis was such a key |ocation

Ms. Klein answered that Menphis is in close proximty to
manufacturing as it has roads available for transportation

Al aska does not have the sane base of exports. Menphis wll
continue as a strong conpetitor

2:04: 18 PM

Senator Huggins asked how nuch business conpared for
domestic versus international in Menphis. MVs. Kl ein
admtted that she did not know.

Senator O son added that Menphis was headquarters for
Federal Express. He asked if there were differences that
woul d create a fee structure in Anchorage conpetitive with
Menphi s, enabling higher revenues. Ms. Klein responded that
she had reviewed the itens and would address them later in
the presentation. She noted that other US ports wth
manuf acturing and exports are conpetitors.

2:05:32 PM

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 18, “Wakening in 2008":
Weakeni ng in 2008

» US Econom c Recessi on
Passenger downturn el sewhere
Avi ation Industry in Crisis

— Airline Bankruptcies & Mergers
H gh Fuel Costs

Fewer Flights & Capacity

* AIAS Activity & Revenue

Senat e Fi nance Committee 7 03/23/09 1:37 P. M



— Cargo Activity Declines
— Fuel Fl owage Down
— Hi gh Debt

Ms. Klein spoke about the US economc recession. The
decreases in traffic began in June 2008, increasing as the
year progressed. O her airports in the US began to follow
Alaska’s trends. H gh fuel costs added to the fall in
international as well as rural traffic. Many bankruptcies
and nmergers were seen and many ol der aircraft taken out of
service. She noted that multiple communities lost all air
service, a tragedy that woul d devastate Al aska.

2:08: 34 PM

Ms. Klein stated that when United pulled out of Alaska,
while Delta and Northwest Airlines nerged. Wen United
Airlines pulled out, existing air carriers such as Delta
and Northwest Airlines picked up the traffic demand.

2:09: 11 PM

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 19, “Sunmmary of Fiscal Year 2008
Al aska International Airport System (AlAS) Activity”:

Summary of Fiscal Year 2008

Al AS Activity

« Total Landings = 101, 863 (-05%

e Cargo by Landings = 46,965 (-5.4%

« Passengers by seats = 5,380,811 (+4.4%

* Fuel Flowage = 865 mllion gallons (-6.6%

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 20, “AlAS FY06-FY®® YTD Mnthly
Passenger Enpl anenents.” The nonthly passenger enpl anenents
equat e the nunber of people entering an aircraft. The noted
decreases are consistent with the rest of the country.

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 21, “Landing Revenue by Aircraft
Certified Maxi mum G oss Take-Of Wi ght”:

Landi ng Revenue by Aircraft

Certified Maxi mum G oss Take-Of Wi ght

e Cargo aircraft

 Passenger (Pax) aircraft

 Airport’s as a standard, charge landing fees to air
carriers for use

Senat e Fi nance Committee 8 03/23/09 1:37 P. M



e Airport Landing Fees are charged by the aircraft
manuf act urers

Certified Maxi mum Gross Take-Of Weight (CMGTW for
each use

e Alr Carriers are required to report aircraft weights
monthly in certified

Activity reports (CAR s) to the airport’s they utilize

2:11:41 PM

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 22, “AIAS FY06 and FY09 YTD
Mont hly Conbi ned Cargo-Pax CMGTW: She referenced the
trends exhibited in the graph that follow global narket
trends. She inforned that the nonthly conbined cargo is
down 19 percent in the beginning of the fiscal year. The
nonths varied, yet the systenis average is 19 percent. In
Fai rbanks, the average is 2 percent higher. Traffic by
weight is down 12 to 28 percent. The international market
in Decenber, referred to as an airfreight collapse
t hr oughout the world, shows a 26 percent decline.

Co-Chair Stedman inquired about the availability of March
data. Ms. Klein answered that the requested data |ags about
one nonth because the carrier mnmust send in the certified
activity reports.

Co-Chair Stednan asked if M. Klein expected changes in the
trends. He asked if the estinmation was conti nued downward
momentum or an i ncrease in March

2:14:02 PM

Ms. Klein projected a 20 percent decline through the end of
this year.

Ms. Klein stated that wth a conparison seen on Slide 23
“Airport CMGTW Concerns and Conpari sons”:

Al AS:

 Mnth of Decenber CMGITW conpared to sanme nonth of
prior year down 22.50 percent

* FY0O9 ( with 7 nmonths of year) shows a CMGTW aver age
decline of 19.92 percent

O her Airports in the US:
* San Francisco freight for Decenmber down 43 percent
* Los Angeles freight for Decenber down 24.3 percent

Senat e Fi nance Committee 9 03/23/09 1:37 P. M



e | ATA reports “22.6 percent collapse in air freight
volumes for Decenber as export volunes fell 20-30
percent in the US, Asia, and Europe”

Ms. Klein explained that the market is dependant on
products comng from Asia to the US. She admitted recently
| earning that market trends follow the housing construction
mar ket .

2:16:19 PM

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 24, “AlAS FY06-FY09 YTD Mnthly
Fuel s.” She inforned about declines in fuel consunption for
several years. She added that the consunption in FY09 is
414 mllion gallons, which <correlates wth decreased
traffic. Since fuel is one of the greatest costs in the
Aviation Industry, many airlines are reducing aircraft
wei ght inproving fuel efficiency. The cargo carriers are
only required to carry enough fuel to get to an alternate
| ocation and many airlines carry less fuel as |ower weight
rai ses fuel efficiency.

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 25, “Al AS Fuel Trends”:

Fuel Fl owage Fees
e Charged on each gallon of fue

* $0.027 per gal |l on for aircraft >12, 5000
(signatory carriers)

e Accounts for ~20% of the Al AS Revenue

Changes
» Cargo Freight Down
e Od Aircraft Being Parked
e Airlines Inproved Efficiencies
« Carrying Less Fuel Weight

2:19:21 PM

Senat or Huggins asked about the price of fuel and the
flying habits of large carriers. He wondered if comrercial
carriers are bound to change to a blend fuel as the
mlitary is. Ms. Klein answered that the Federal Aviation
Adm nistration, which is |looking for alternative fuels for
commer ci al aircraft, regulates the commerci al mar ket .
Senat or Huggins stated that Al aska would be part of a

Senat e Fi nance Committee 10 03/23/09 1:37 P. M



denonstration project for aviation fuel. He wondered if a
certain gas price attracts carriers landing in Al aska.

2:21:12 PM

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 26, “Trends in International
Freight.” She rem nded that the tragedy of Septenber 11 had
a huge inpact on the aviation industry. The current
recession has not led to that level of traffic decrease.
Most airports took years to recover from Septenber 11, yet
Al aska recovered in six nonths.

2:22: 36 PM

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 27, “AlAS Responded Early to
Trends”:

Reduced Operating Costs:
 June: reduce 2008 budget spendi ng
e July: defer, delay, and cut capital projects by
$300 million

e August: projected year traffic declines of 15-20
per cent

1. Cut devel opnent funds
2. Hold utility increases and costs fl at
3. Put TSA rei nbursenent to debt

e Cctober: reduce 2009 operating budget by $3
million (3%
e« March further contai nment

Stay Conpetitive
* Sept enber: Initiated independent third party
Asi an Cargo Anal ysis Report..(Keiser Phillips)
* Assess and track Qther US Conpeting Airports...

* Decenber: Ai rport Operating Agreenent Lease
conpleted in partnership with airlines

Ms. Klein noted the industry' s decreases and projections.
She di scussed cutting sonme devel opnent funds collected from
airlines and placing those funds toward debt. She nentioned
significant wutility increases, although staff preforned
superbly finding efficiencies to keep inpacts flat. She
reported receiving $8 mllion in TSA reinbursenent funds
for security screening allocated to airport debt equaling

Senat e Fi nance Committee 11 03/23/09 1:37 P. M



nore than half of the industry’'s operating budget. She
shared that a 3 percent reduction of the operating budget,
using the supplenental budget as part of negotiations with
the airlines, presented a sol ution.

Ms. Klein informed about an industry consultant hired to
aid in better wunderstanding of the Asian market. The
aviation industry nonitors other airports across the
country for useful conpetitor data. She informed about the
recent conpletion of an airport operating agreenent wth
the airlines that was in hol dover for three years.

Co-Chair Stednman asked if Ms. Klein was a state enployee
listed in the state financial directory. He noted the debt
| evel of 50 percent. Ms. Klein clarified that the debt was
bet ween $39 and $40 million.

2:26: 25 PM

Co-Chair Stedman asked if cash flow from operations was
positive or negative. He requested a debt service report on
the previously requested financial docunent.

Ms. Klein surmsed that the debt service was $39 nmillion

but she would respond to the commttee with the exact
information. M. Klein referred to the 35 percent of
operating expenses illustrated in Slide 7, “Strength:
Di verse Business Revenues” as the possible debt service.
Co-Chair Stedman asked for a breakdown of the industry’s
depreciation, amatorization, and debt service, as they are
t hree separate conponents.

Ms. Klein stated that she would verify that the debt
service is $39 nmllion. She intended to provide the
requested information to the conmttee as soon as possible.

2:28:11 PM
Senat or Huggi ns asked about the $300 mllion for capital
proj ects. He asked about capital expansion projects

including the min termnal connecting to the north
terminal. Ms. Klein responded that the connection is one of
the main projects in the five-year program currently under
construction, for conpletion in June 2009.

2:29:36 PM

Senat e Fi nance Committee 12 03/23/09 1:37 P. M



Ms. Klein discussed Slide 28, “AlAS and the Future

Qut | ook™:
1. AIAS and the Future Qutl ook
1. Tied to National & d obal Econony
2. Responsive & Conpetitive Airport
3. Cautious Positive G owh
2:30:45 PM

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 29, “AlAS Linked to the Wrld”:

A obal Econony

e AIAS tied to Wrld and US trends
e Economnmi ¢ recession

Response and Vi gil ance

* Respond to Market and Costs
» Track Airport Conpetition
» Assess Over-flights to US

Real i ze Limtations

e Surface and Internodal Limted
Northern Cinate D sadvant age
No | ocal manufacturing

Limted air exports

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 30, “Alaska Tied to Wrld Ar

Trade”:

Proj ecti ons:

Air Freight Gowing Wrldw de by 6 percent a year
Mar ket size doubl es every 10 years
Wrld Air Cargo will Triple over next two Decades
( Boei ng)
US Cargo Share of Air freight Revenue:

o 5 percent Donmestic Mjors

o 15 percent European Majors

o 20-50 percent Asian Majors

2:33: 02 PM

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 31, “AlAS on the Forefront”:

Senat e Fi nance Committee 13 03/23/09 1:37 P. M



Al AS on the Forefront
Responsi ve:

e Early Response to USA Econom ¢ Downt urn
0 Responded to Carrier’s Requests for Relief
(Fuel)
o Focused on Debt and Rate Stability (Finance)
0 Reduced Operating Expenses
o Lower Landing Fees

e International trade |Inpacts
o0 Asi an Producers
0 USA Consuners

2:34:29 PM

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 32 “Asian Market Projected to
Lead Growth.” The expectation is that Anchorage renains
conpetitive.

Ms. Klein discussed Slide 33 and Al AS Renai ns Conpetitive”:
She stated that the landing fee was |owered by ten cents.
She provided an exanple of other airport fees. Conpetitors
i ncl ude Menphi s and Chi cago.

2: 36: 24 PM

Ms. Klein concluded her presentation wth Slide 34,
“Concl usion: AIAS Leads the Way”:

Responsive, Vigilant, and Serving

» Assess the Conpetitors
0 O her USA Cargo Airports
0 Asian Cargo Carriers and Markets

* New Carrier Partnerships
0 NCA- JFK Station
o Cathay Pacific- New freighters and new
stations
o Evergreen/Kalitta- New Chi na designation
o UPS- Anchor age Tr ai ni ng Cent er, Chi na
frequenci es

Ms. Klein noted that the international airport nust remain
a low cost airport system in order to remain conpetitive.
The declines observed link with the recession and the
econony, with sone recovery anticipated in the com ng year.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 14 03/23/09 1:37 P. M



Ms. Klein disclosed some new carrier partnership with the
United Parcel Service (UPS) adding 20 pilots to the
Anchorage station. She concluded that Al aska remains on the
maj or worl d crossroad.

Co-Chair Stedman asked about the Iast annual financial
statenments. He asked if M. Klein received quarterly or
yearly wupdates. M. Klein replied that annual financial
audits occur as required by the |egislature.

2:39: 04 PM

Co-Chair Stedman asked for the financial statenment for June
30, 2008 along with any updated statenents.

Senator Huggins asked about the carrier’s request for
relief. He asked where Anchorage was nationally regarding
retail fuel pricing. He asked where the nobney originates to
provide the requested relief. M. Klein answered that fuel
di spensers match the spot price, which for Anchorage is Los
Angel es, California. Airlines buy fuel in great quantities
to remain conpetitive.

Senator Huggins repeated that the price of fuel in
Anchorage International A rport matches the spot price in
Los Angeles, California. He asked how to reduce the price
of fuel in order to provide relief. M. Klein answered that
the slide was referring to other relief reducing the inpact
of the high fuel cost. She cited an exanple of escal ating
fuel costs leading to cost increases on termnal rents.

2:41: 34 PM

Senator Huggins asked if nost of the aviation fuel in
Anchorage canme from Flint HIlls. M. K en answered that
the fuel originates from nmultiple locations such as the
Tesoro, Nikiski, Valdez, and Flint HIIs.

Co-Chair Stedman asked Ms. Klein to reply to the conmttee
regarding the origin of fuel at the Anchorage Internationa
Airport. He requested the information presented in total
gal l ons and percentages. Ms. Klein responded that she woul d
retrieve the requested information from the fueling
consortium Co-Chair Stedman explained that the information
ties many of the legislators’ considerations during
| egi sl ati ve session.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 15 03/23/09 1:37 P. M



Senator Huggins asked if Flint Hlls closed tonorrow would
concern her. M. Klein answered by submtting an exanple
The response fromthe fueling consortium was that there was
anpl e storage capacity for the fuel. She understood that
the storage capacity exists.

2:44:28 PM

Senator Ellis asked about the selection of the airport
director. Ms. Klein answered that the airport system has an
airport manager for many years. The prior airport director
had the position currently terned system director. She
stated that she posted the vacant position, but has not
selected a replacenent. Currently, two conpetent airport
managers exist, one in Fairbanks and one in Anchorage.

Senator Ellis observed oddities in the selection process.
He opined that the selection process was not efficient. He
hoped for an airport admnistrator nore capable than the
previ ous one.

2:47:29 PM

Ms. Klein appreciated the conmttee’'s confidence in her.
She suggest ed t hat the AIAS adequately addr essed
chal | enges. She stated that she connected with conpetitors;
many are past coworkers of hers. She added that she would
continue to search for the right manager.

Senator Ellis appreciated the ability to speak. He asked
about the Capstone Loan Program wth only six |oans nmade
since the beginning of this |egislative session. He asked
if this level of performance was adequate or low. M. Klein
answered that the Capstone Loan Program was slower than
expected. She offered to provide the commttee wth future
information regarding the program She felt that the
program was successful, as it remains focused on Al aska.
Co- Chair Stedman echoed the request for a program update.

2:50:43 PM

Senator O son appreciated Ms. Klein' s approach and style
He opined that the airline industry is in distress due to
the thin margin necessary for stockholder confort. He asked
about accounts receivable and how many carriers have not
paid. M. K ein stated that she could not answer the
question, but stated that AIAS acconplished nuch as an

Senat e Fi nance Committee 16 03/23/09 1:37 P. M



international airport. Some snall regional carriers have
greater difficulty.

Co-Chair Stedman asked Ms. Klein to include the 30, 60, and
90-day interest calculation for presentation to the
commttee. He clarified his interest in dollar amounts.

Senator O son asked about nergers with Era Aviation. M.
Klein responded that even in the economc downturn there is
ability to lease. She stated that the comm ssioner for
Mlitary and Veteran’s Affairs understands the nerger.

Senator d son asked about trends in Al aska General Aviation
wi thin the Anchorage International Airport.

2:54:50 PM

Ms. Klein stated that General Aviation nunbers remain the
sanme. Additional parking North of Lake Hood, replaced the
previous parking situation. The wait [list for float
operations is 3-5 years rather than 20 years. The
operations may be down but the citing and use of the
airport remains the same for General Aviation.

Senator O son asked about plans for the Lake Hood Strip.
Ms. Klein responded that the Lake Hood Strip has about 50
percent of customers requesting pavenent. She thought it
ill advised to pave the strip, with paved runways existing
on the international side of the airport already providing
t hat option.

2:56:37 PM

Senator Thomas asked about a simlar chart for the
Fai rbanks International Airport. Ms. Kl ein answered that no
chart exists for the Fairbanks International Airport. She
communi cated that she intends to create such a chart. She
antici pated an econom c inpact assessnment for the comunity
of Fairbanks through a system pl an.

Senat or Thonmas asked about the study’s projected date of
conpletion. Ms. Klein replied that the necessary approval
granted by the Federal Aviation Admnistration (FAA) to
utilize grant funds. She hoped for a conpleted study wth
information available prior to the next legislative session
in January.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 17 03/23/09 1:37 P. M



Senat or Huggins asked about volcano eruptions and the
deci sion process for airport closure. M. Klein responded
that the airport is always open. It is the discretion of
the pilot and airline to fly during a vol cano eruption.

Co-Chair Stedman expressed gratitude for Ms. Klein s
present ati on.

Ms. Klein stated that AIAS successfully sold a bond
refinancing the variable debt in January, which she felt
illustrates the confidence in Alaska aviation. She had
great confidence in Anchorage International and Fairbanks
| nternational airports.

Co-Chair Stednman asked for a debt schedule included in the
requested financial statenents.

3:00: 07 PM

#
ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 2:59 PM

Senat e Fi nance Committee 18 03/23/09 1:37 P. M



